ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
February 26, 2008
1: 02 p. m
VEVMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Jay Ranras
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 44
"An Act relating to information from veterans on the permanent
fund dividend application form"

- MOVED CSHB 44(M.V) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 11

Supporting federal funding for veterans' health care and urging
the United States Congress to ensure adequate funding for
veterans' health care.

-MOVED SJR 11 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 44

SHORT TI TLE: VETERAN | NFO ON PFD APPLI CATI ONS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GUTTENBERG DAHLSTROM KERTTULA

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07
01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) MV, STA

02/ 26/ 08 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

BILL: SJR 11
SHORT TITLE: SUPPORTING U.S. VETERANS HEALTH CARE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOSKI

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -1- February 26, 2008



05/ 09/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

05/ 09/ 07 (S) HES

02/ 04/ 08 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 04/ 08 (S) Moved SJR 11 Qut of Conmittee
02/ 04/ 08 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 06/ 08 (S) HES RPT 3DP

02/ 06/ 08 (S) DP: DAVIS, THOVAS, DYSON

02/ 11/ 08 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 11/ 08 (S) VERSI O\' SJR 11

02/ 13/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 08 (H) MV, HES

02/ 26/ 08 (H) MLV AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 44 as the sponsor.

RI C DAVI DGE, State Council President

Vi et nam Vet erans of Anerica; Chairnman

Al aska Veteran's Foundation, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

RON S| EBELS, Representative

Alaska Mlitary Order of the Purple Heart

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

JOHN YOUMANS, Vice President

Al aska Vet erans Busi ness Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

JUAN GUERRERU, Menber

Al aska Chapter of the Veterans of Mddern Warfare

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

TI M WHEELER, Secretary

Al aska Vet erans Business Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

KEVI N DAVI D MCGEE, Presi dent
Aneri can Federation of Governnment Enpl oyees Local 3028

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 2- February 26, 2008



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

DI ANE BENSON

Chugi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaki ng for herself, testified in support
of HB 44 and SJR 11.

MAURI CE BAI LEY, Presi dent

Chapter 903

Vi et nam Vet erans of America

Mat - Su, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

PENNY FI ERRCS, Community Li ai son

Veteran's Avi ation Qutreach (VAO

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 44 and
in support of SJR 11.

DAVE GLENN, Menber

Vi et nam Vet erans of America, Chapter 903; Pil ot

Veteran's Aviation Qutreach

Mat - Su, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

TOM BAI RD, Menber

Vi et nam Vet erans of Anerica

Chapter 903; Veterans Aviation Qutreach; Mlitary Oder of the
Pur pl e Heart

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

GEORGE BENNETT SR., Vi et nam Vet eran
Sitka, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 44 and SJR 11.

SENATOR Bl LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SJR 11 as the sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House Special Conmmittee on Mlitary

and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:02:32 PM
Represent ati ves Kawasaki, Buch, Dahlstrom Fairclough, and Roses

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 3- February 26, 2008



were present at the call to order. Representati ve LeDoux
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

1: 02: 57 PM

HB 44- VETERAN | NFO ON PFD APPLI CATI ONS

1: 02: 58 PM

CHAI R ROSES announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 44, "An Act relating to information from veterans
on the permanent fund dividend application form?"

1: 03: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG Al aska State Legislature,
speaking as the sponsor of HB 44, inforned the commttee that
the bill is a vehicle that allows the state to reach out to
veterans and ensure that they have veteran's services and know
what is available to them He stated that there will be a place
on the Al aska pernmanent fund dividend (PFD) application that
will ask if the applicant is a veteran and, if so, of what
branch of service. This information will be provided to the
Department of MIlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA), and possibly,
to other veteran's organizations. Representative GQCuttenberg
assured the conmttee that providing this information is
optional .

1: 05: 09 PM

CHAI R ROSES asked whether the exact wording of the request for
information i s known.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG indicated that the sponsors are
| eaving the exact wording and layout up to the Pernmanent Fund
D vi dend Division (PFDD), Departnent of Revenue (DOR).

1:05:44 PM

CHAI R RCSES suggested that the wording that requests the branch
of service should include the Alaska Territorial Guard; this
addition would help to locate nenbers of the Al aska Territorial
Guard who have not sel f-report ed.

1: 05: 54 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 4- February 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE Buch asked whether the "push back"” for this bill
cones fromthe PFDD for the cost of the new forns.

1: 06: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG called the commttee's attention to
the fiscal note fromthe PFDD that indicated there would be one-
time costs for database work and for re-designing the forns;
afterward, there would be annual clerical expenses.

1: 06: 50 PM
CHAI R ROSES opened public testinony.
1. 07: 07 PM

RIC DAVIDGE, State Council President, Vietnam Veterans of
Anerica; Chairman, Al aska Veteran's Foundation, Inc., inforned
the commttee that many veteran's organizations are involved in
HB 44. He stated that there are 80,000 veterans in the state,
some of whom veteran's organi zations are not able to find and to
advise of their rights, benefits, and services because of the
present federal and state privacy laws that now restrict the

rel ease of personal information. However, Al aska has a uni que
vehicle to reach veterans via the PFD application. From the
information supplied by the PFD application, veteran's

organi zations can obtain current addresses for veterans and
contact them about the benefits, particularly nedical benefits,
that are due them for their sacrifice and service. M. Davi dge
told the commttee about Veteran's Aviation Qutreach [(VAO],
which is a group of private pilots who ook for veterans that
may be isolated in villages and rural areas, in need of nedical
care and other services. The pilots discovered that the |evel
of need was beyond what the volunteer group could neet. M.
Davi dge explained that veteran's organizations in the state
searched for a way for the Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans'
Affairs (DWA) to locate and annually notify veterans of

services and Dbenefits. Hs group also woirked wth the
governor's advisory council on veteran's affairs, |egislators,
and the DWA coordinator to address their concerns about how to
conply with confidentiality |aws. He referred to substitute
| anguage that was provided to the commttee and suggested that
the new | anguage be considered as a conmittee substitute. M.
Davi dge concluded by saying that, in addition to enabling
veterans to benefit fromthe services that they have earned, the
bill will have an enornous positive inpact to the econom cs of
t he state.

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 5- February 26, 2008



1:12: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked whether the alternative | anguage
was in the conmttee packet.

1:13: 13 PM

MR. DAVIDGE stated that the |anguage was sent on a docunent
titled "HB 44, House Conmttee Substitute."

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM stated that the commttee does not have
t he docunent and asked that it be faxed.

1:14: 23 PM

RON SI EBELS, Representative, Alaska Mlitary Order of the Purple
Heart, stated that this bill wll help veteran's organi zations
in the nore populated areas that have nore resources, contact
veterans who are living in renote areas. He expressed his
strong support for the bill.

1:15: 07 PM

JOHN YOUMANS, Vice President, Al aska Veterans Business Alliance,
opined that HB 44 should be passed as soon as possible. He
related his experience working with veterans in Anchorage who
are not getting the nedical care they need.

1:15: 53 PM

JUAN GUERRERU, Menber, Al aska Chapter of the Veterans of Mdern
Warfare, expressed his belief that this is an inportant bill;
there are new veterans com ng back fromIraq and Afghanistan and
veteran's organizations do not have a way to |ocate them once
they have left the mlitary.

1:16: 32 PM

MR. DAVI DGE expressed his support of the idea of adding the
Al aska Territorial Guard to the request for information.

1:17: 04 PM
TIM WHEELER, Secretary, Alaska Veterans Business Alliance,

stated that, through his business correspondence, he has net
many veterans who are not aware of the different outlets for

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 6- February 26, 2008



veterans available in the state. He opined that this bill wll
be beneficial to all veterans in the state.

1:17: 29 PM

KEVI N DAVI D MCGEE, President, Anerican Federation of Government
Enpl oyees Local 3028, expressed his support of the bill as a
means to communicate information to Alaska' s veterans. He

observed that there are roughly 80,000 veterans in the state and
this is the | argest popul ation per capita nationally.

1:19: 08 PM

DI ANE BENSON i nfornmed the conmttee that she is the nother of a
wounded warrior and a nenber of the Anchorage Chanber of
Commerce Mlitary Appreciation Commttee. MVs. Benson,
testifying as an individual, expressed her support of HB 44.
She attenpted to create a |list of Al askan veterans and rel ated
how difficult it is to find veterans and ensure that they
receive their benefits and are acknow edged for their service.
In fact, her Vietnam War veteran uncle is disillusioned to the
point that he does not want to seek services. She said that
there is a certain outreach that needs to take pl ace.

1: 20: 39 PM

MAURI CE BAILEY, President, Chapter 903, Vietnam Veterans of
Anerica, stated that he was also a Veteran's Aviation CQutreach
pilot. He expressed his for support for HB 44 and said that it
is long overdue.

1: 21: 33 PM

PENNY FI ERROS, Community Liaison, Veteran's Aviation Qutreach

told the commttee that she has worked on airbases in the Bush
for 13 years and has observed the work that the VAO does. She
agreed with previous testinony about the difficulty of reaching
veterans who are living in rural areas and supported the work of
t he VAQ

1: 22: 17 PM
DAVE GLENN, Menber, Vietnam Veterans of Anerica, Chapter 903;
Pilot, Veteran's Aviation CQutreach, stated that he has been a

pilot for 33 years and can recall many instances of running
across msplaced veterans in the Bush. This bill is a step in

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -7- February 26, 2008



the right direction to locate and serve veterans, and he
encouraged its passage.

1:22:57 PM

TOM BAIRD, Menber, Vietnam Veterans of Anmerica, expressed his
full support of the bill.

1:23: 33 PM

GECRCE BENNETT SR, Vietnam Veteran, told the commttee that he
believes that the bill needs the attention of the legislative
process, due to the fact that the state is big and it is hard to
contact veterans and put them on the rolls. M. Bennett
stressed that the bill is very inportant to veterans in the

state and Sout heast Al aska.

1:26:14 PM

CHAIR RCOSES cl osed testinmony on HB 44 with the reservation that
the bill will be taken up again later in the neeting.

1:26: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked M. Davidge whether there has
been legal review of the anendnment that his organization
subm tted.

1:27:54 PM

MR. DAVI DGE explained that his organization renoved the itens
that were of concern to the governor's advisory council and the
staff of the DWA.

1:28: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether Legislative Legal and
Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, has reviewed the
docunent .

1:28:22 PM

MR. DAVI DGE sai d no.

[HB 44 was addressed later in the hearing, when it was
ultimately amended and reported fromcomittee.]

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 8- February 26, 2008



SJR 11- SUPPORTI NG U. S. VETERANS' HEALTH CARE

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 44.]
1:28:25 PM

CHAI R ROSES announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 11, "Supporting federal funding for
veterans' health care and urging the United States Congress to
ensure adequate funding for veterans' health care.”

1:28:45 PM

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
t he sponsor, introduced SJR 11. Senat or W el echowski i nformed
the commttee that the resolution urges the U S. Congress to
provi de adequate funding for veterans' health care. He

par aphrased fromthe resol ution:

The United States Departnent of Veterans Affairs
provi des medi cal care for veterans who have risked
their lives to protect the security of the nation; and
the departnent provides a w de range of specialized
services to neet the wunique needs of veterans,
including treatment and care for spinal cord injury,
bl i ndness, traumatic brain injury, post traumatic
stress disorder, anputation injuries, nental health
and substance abuse, and conditions requiring |ong-
term care; in addition, the departnent trains health
care personnel, conducts nedical research and serves
as backup to the U S Departnent of Defense, and
supporting comunities in times of crisis.

Senator Wel echowski continued to explain that the office of
Veterans Affairs (VA) has been consistently underfunded. In
fact, the Governnental Accountability Ofice (GAO reported that
there is a lack of resources and staffing in the office to
process veteran's clains. Furthernmore, funding |ags behind
medical inflation and the increased demand for services; in
fact, the enrollnment demand for services increased 134 percent
from FY 1996 to FY 2004. Senator W el echowski pointed out that
the resolution fulfills two purposes: expresses the gratitude
of the Alaska State Legislature to veterans for their service;
and urges the U S. Congress to ensure adequate funding for
veterans' health care.

1: 31: 06 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 9- February 26, 2008



MAURI CE BAI LEY, President, Vietnam Veterans of America, Chapter
903, stated his support for SIJR 11 in order to take care of the
vet erans.

1: 31: 55 PM

PENNY FIERRCS, Community Liaison, Veteran's Aviation OQutreach
(VAO), expressed her belief that it is inportant to pass SJR 11,
along with HB 44, in order to effectively reach veterans and
hel p them achi eve their benefits.

1: 32: 31 PM

DAVE GLENN, Menber, Vietnam Veterans of Anerica, Chapter 903;
Pilot, Veteran's Aviation Qutreach, expressed his support for
SJR 11. He infornmed the commttee that he is a participant in
the Departnent of Veterans' Affairs (VA nedical system and,
al though it does the best it can, there is roomfor inprovenent.

1: 33: 10 PM

TOM BAIRD, Vice President, Vietnam Veterans of America, Chapter
903; Vice President, Veterans Aviation CQutreach; Menber ,
Mlitary Order of the Purple Heart, indicated his support for
SJR 11 in the hope that the funding for the VA can be nmade |ess
subj ective and nore objective and, thereby, nake nore assured
f undi ng.

1: 33: 57 PM

GECRCE BENNETT SR, Vietnam Veteran, told of his opportunity to
travel to many comunities in Southeast. VWhile working with
veterans he has found that veterans share the sane problens.
Al though there are hospitals for Native veterans, the drawback
is that the veterans often need to go to Seattle or to Anchorage
for treatnent. M. Bennett pointed out that local clinics can
not service victinms of Agent Orange. He expressed his hope that
the bill will address the shortcom ngs of the health system that
serves Native veterans, and all veterans, statew de.

1: 35: 41 PM

DI ANE BENSON i nforned the conmttee that she is a nenber of the
Anchorage Chanber of Commerce Mlitary Appreciation Conmmttee,
but that she is testifying on her own behalf. She further
expl ained that her son was severely wounded in 2005, and that

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -10- February 26, 2008



she spent three and one-half nonths at Walter Reed Arny Medi cal
Center with him In addition, she has spent a great deal of
time communicating with other famlies of wounded warriors about
the special problems that they experience as they make the
transition from service into the VA health care system MVs.
Benson noted that she is also in contact with VA officials. She
expressed her dismay at the necessity of SJR 11 and conmended

those involved with its passage. Ms. Benson explained that
injuries fromthe war in Iraq are unique for two reasons: t he
extent of Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) and "lraq
i nfections.™ Irag infections are ongoing problens caused by
bone fragnments contamnated by sand and from |nprovised
Expl osi ve Devices (I1EDs). She said that the infections warrant

continuing health care concerns for veterans and their famlies.
She suggested the addition to SJR 11 of "not limted to" on page
1, line [13], followng "including." Her experience shows that
it is inpossible to list all of the concerns and injuries that
are dealt with under the VA health care system Ms. Benson
continued to say that PTSD is not being adequately diagnosed and
treated and additional funding will be needed to treat its wde
spread effects on veterans. She then remnded the conmttee
that assured funding is [the country's] obligation.

1: 39: 55 PM

RI C DAVI DGE, State Council President, Vietnam Veterans of
Anerica; Chairnman, Al aska Veteran's Foundation, Inc., stated
that all veteran's organizations are in agreenent that the

process to fund veteran's health care needs to be changed.
Currently, veteran's health care funding is a conponent of the
Departnent of Defense construction budget. This process does
not provide the VA planners wth reliable, sufficient, and
tinmely funding for facilities and nedical care. Fornula funding

for veteran's health care wll be based on the nunber of
veterans enrolled and the nunmber of those eligible. At this
time, there are seven mllion veterans enrolled; sone receive

disability at their discharge from service and sone disorders,
such as the effects of exposure to Agent Orange, and PTSD, show
up after discharge. M. Davidge opined that a structured system
will take the funding out of partisan control. He continued to
say that he is a critic of sending veterans out-of-state for
treatment that is available in Alaska, and he re-stated that
this bill is of the highest priority to all nine of the national
veteran' s service organi zations.

1: 44: 36 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -11- February 26, 2008



JUAN GUERRERU, Menber, Al aska Menber, Chapter of the Veterans of
Modern Warfare; Famly Ties Foundation, expressed his belief
that this resolution needs to pass as soon as possible to
support veterans.

1: 45: 06 PM

TIM WHEELER, Secretary, Alaska Veterans Business Alliance,
stated that his organi zation supports the immedi ate passage of
t he resol ution.

1:45: 22 PM

KEVIN DAVID MCGEE, President, Anmerican Federation of Governnent
Enpl oyees Local 3028, expressed his support of SIJR 11. He noted
that the lack of predictability and nethodology in the VA Health
care process threatens to unravel the acconplishnments of the
health care system M. MGee stressed that VA health care nust
be funded on a nmnmandatory system based on the nunber of
enrol | ees. In 2008, appropriators proposed increased funding,
however, politics got in the way once again. Fundi ng del ays
cause many problens for veterans and for the nedical facilities.
McGee pointed out that VA hospitals excel in nany areas but
di scretionary funding limts sufficient staffing and purchases
of necessary equipnment. He re-stated his support of the passage
of SJR 11.

1:49: 11 PM

JOHN YOUMANS, Vice President, Al aska Veterans Business Alliance,
expressed his organization's support of SJR 11. He related his
experience that shows that this bill is greatly needed.

1:49: 36 PM

RON S| EBELS, Representative, Alaska Mlitary Order of the Purple
Heart, expressed his support of SJR 11. He opined that this
[funding] is owed to the veterans in fairness.

1: 50: 13 PM

CHAI R ROSES cl osed public testinony and thanked the veterans and
their famlies for their service.

1: 50: 30 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -12- February 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked for the sponsor's reaction to the
addi ti on suggested by D ane Benson.

1:51: 27 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that the statenent is inclusive by
the words "and conditions requiring long-term care.” However,
he said that he had no objection to the addition by the
comm ttee.

1:51: 46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM agr eed.
1: 51: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how to get veteran's health care to
villages and to the rural areas of the state.

1:52: 24 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI responded that the state needs to continue
to put pressure on the federal governnent to fulfill its
responsibility to honor prom ses nmade to the mlitary.

1: 52: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report SJR 11, 25-LS0829\E,
out of comrittee wth individual reconmmrendations and the
acconpanying zero fiscal note. Hearing no opposition, SJR 11
was reported from the House Special Conmttee on Mlitary and
Vet erans' Affairs.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:52 p.m to 1:56 p.m

HB 44- VETERAN | NFO ON PFD APPLI CATI ONS

[CHAI R ROSES turned the gavel over to Representative Dahl strom ]
1:56: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked for comrents from Representative
GQuttenberg regarding the changes to HB 44 suggested by M.
Davi dge.

1: 57: 07 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -13- February 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated that HB 44 requires the
collection of veteran's statenents by the Departnent of Revenue
on the pernanent fund dividend (PFD) appl i cation; this
information is then provided to the Departnent of Mlitary &
Vet er ans' Affairs, and possi bly to ot her veteran's
or gani zati ons. The proposed change prohibits the release of
information by the DWA He suggested that the question of
confidentiality can be addressed by the renoval of the word
"not" from page 1, Iline 13, of the bill. Representati ve
GQuttenberg opined that this change would require DWA to
determne how to pass the needed information along through
regul ati on.

1: 58: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the sponsor accepted the
addition of "Anerican" to line 6, after the words "is a."

1:59: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said there was no problem with that
addi ti on.

1: 59: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  DAHLSTROM asked  whet her the addition of
"Anerican” would exclude the application of a soldier who is not
a US citizen.

1: 59: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that this does not define a
person as an American soldier and anyone would still qualify.
She continued to point out that the proposed change al so del etes
the request for the branch of service and the dates of service.

2:01: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG confirned that the branch of service
is part of the information released to the veteran's service
or gani zat i ons.

2:01:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked M. Davidge why his suggested
change del etes the request for the branch of the service.

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -14- February 26, 2008



2:01:56 PM

MR. DAVI DGE responded that the highest priority is to identify
vet er ans. He opined that DWA can determne how to qualify
their service.

2:02:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated her belief that the information
is voluntary and, if desired, the veteran can |eave the branch
of service and dates of service blank. However, if the
interpretation is that this information is required, she said
t hat she understood the concern [of M. Davidge].

2:03:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG agreed that the additional information
is helpful to the organizations, but not required.

2: 03: 59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether the additional information

requested is a disincentive for the veteran to indicate his or
her servi ce.

2: 04: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG opi ned that, once a veteran decides to
i ndi cate service, he or she will conplete the form

2:05:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH observed t hat t he addi ti onal
information will save an initial contact wwth the veteran.
2:05:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether a veteran of the mlitary,
who is not an Anerican citizen, would be considered an Anerican
vet er an.

2:07: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM pointed out that only an Al askan
resident would be qualified to submt a PFD application.

2:07: 15 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 15- February 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX opined that a person does not to be an
Anerican citizen to apply for an Al aska PFD.

2:07:15 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d that "Philippine veterans ... ."
2:07:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked representatives of the DWA and
the DOR to testify.

2:07:56 PM
JERRY BURNETT, Di rector, Admi nistrative Services Division

Departnent of Revenue (DOR), clarified that a person does not
have to be a citizen of the United States to collect a PFD

2:08:17 PM

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Legi sl ative Li ai son, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner/ Adj ut ant CGeneral , Depart ment of Mlitary &
Veterans' Affairs, suggested a change on page 1, line 6, that

would add "of the United States mlitary" after the word
"veteran."

2:08:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM re-stated t he suggested wordi ng.
2:09: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether the U S. Coast Guard (USCG
is considered to be a branch of the mlitary.

2:09:18 PM

MR. PIERRE answered that the USCG is part of the U S
Depart nent of Homel and Security.

2:09: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX further asked whether USCG nenbers are
vet er ans.

2: 09: 38 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 16- February 26, 2008



MR. PIERRE noted that the answer to that question depends on the
date that the federal governnment made the transfer of the USCG
from the Departnent of Transportation to the Departnent of
Honmel and Security.

2:09:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM advised that HB 44 is not the bill to
address the i ssue of whether USCG nenbers are veterans.

2:10: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed her concern that, if USCG
nmenbers are veterans, they also need to be contacted. However
t he proposed anmendnent nmay excl ude them

2:10: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that "American veteran"” wll
define USCG nmenbers, but "United States mlitary" does not. She
suggested that |I|eaving "Anerican veteran" reaches the nost
i ndi vi dual s.

2:10: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked whether the commttee wll
support | eaving the |anguage unchanged and asking M. Pierre to
further exam ne the |anguage in the next commttee of referral
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

2:11: 20 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH stated that the language in HB 44 is
i ncl usi ve. He opined that the proposed change encunbers the
state with nore information than desired and needs to be
clarified by Legi sl ative Legal and Resear ch Ser vi ces,
Legislative Affairs Agency. He expressed his desire to not
change the bill and encouraged a |egal examnation of the

| anguage in the [proposed amendnent].
2:12: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH pointed out that there is no conmttee

substitute, there is proposed |anguage for an anendnment that has
been submtted by an organization. She offered a conceptual

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -17- February 26, 2008



anmendnent for page 1, lines 11 to 12, to delete
and add "voluntary, ".

not mandatory, "

2:14: 01 PM
There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
2:14: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM referred to the confidentiality issue
and questioned the renoval of the word "not."

2:14: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that, when the request for

information is added to the PFD application, the information
beconmes not confidential.

2:15: 04 PM

VR. BURNETT informed the conmmttee that al | appl i cant
information on the PFD application is confidential, except for
the applicant's nane. However, information is allowed to be

shared with governnental agencies for governnental purposes.
Therefore, not requiring the DWA to keep this information
confidential is a departure fromcurrent practices.

2:15: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH surm sed that, when the information
goes from a state agency to the veteran's organi zation, it is no
| onger confidential. She asked whether the recipient of the
information can be required to nmaintain confidentiality.

2:16:12 PM

MR. PIERRE expressed his belief that the present |anguage
mandates that the DWA deliver the information to the veteran's
service organi zations. A statenment that says the information is
confidential, except for that, wll cover the questions of
whet her the information can be passed to any other governnenta
organi zati on or for another purpose.

2:16: 57 PM

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 18- February 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH observed that the Legislative Legal
and Research Services have suggested that the PFD application is
not confidential.

2:17:21 PM

MR. BURNETT stated that the Permanent Fund D vidend Division
(PFDD) is confortable with this |anguage because the giving of
the information is voluntary by statute.

2:17:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her agreenent.

2:18: 02 PM

MR. PIERRE suggested that the commttee discuss the addition of
"Alaska Territorial Guard" to page 1, line 6, of the bill.

2:19: 04 PM

CHAI R ROSES noved Conceptual Amendnent 2; on page 1, line 6,
after the word "veteran," add "or Al aska Territorial Quard,"

2:19:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ected and asked whether nenbers of

the Alaska Territorial Guard are veterans; if so, she suggested
use of the word "including"” instead of "or."

2:19:39 PM

CHAIR ROSES re-stated that the anmendnent is, after the word
"veteran," insert "including Al aska Territorial Cuard,"

2:20:12 PM

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.
2:20: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH noved to report HB 44, as anended, out
of conmmittee with i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. Hearing no objection, CSHB 44(MV)
was reported out of the House Special Conmttee on MIlitary and
Vet erans' Affairs

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE -19- February 26, 2008



2:21: 08 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:21 p.m

HOUSE MLV COWM TTEE - 20- February 26, 2008



